68979-7

68979-7

NO. 68979-7-I

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION I OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

JOHN WORTHINGTON, Appellant

v.

WASHINGTON STATE ATTORNEY GENERAL ET AL, Respondents



APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

JOHN WORTHINGTON 4500 SE 2ND PL RENTON, WA.98059 425-917-2235

A. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. The trial court erred in dismissing all Worthington's claims by summary judgment order for collateral estoppel, res judicata and statute of limitations.
- 2. The trial court also erred in not granting Worthington's motion for summary judgment
- 3. The trial court erred in refusing to reverse the order in the motion to reconsider the court's summary judgment dismissal order.

ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. If a case is decided on jurisdictional defects, is that decision "on the merits" for res judicata or collateral estoppel purposes?
- 2. Were all other legal tests required to establish collateral estoppel or res judicata met?
- 3. Should the allegations of fraud have been determined by a trier of fact, or did Worthington prevail in summary judgment?
- 4. Should Worthington's tort claims have been granted?
- 5. Should the injunctions have been granted?

B. CASE STATEMENT

In August of 2006, after receiving an email from U.S. Attorney Janet
Freeman requesting "dirt" on John Worthington and Steve Sarich, (CP 532 534)
Bremerton police Detective Roy Alloway began an investigation on suspicion of a
Violation of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act (VUCSA), RCW 69.50.401.

On January 12, 2007, after the Kitsap County Superior court issued a warrant to search Sarichs' residence at 1604 Cedar Street, Everett. Detective

Alloway, along with his WEST NET (West Sound Narcotics Enforcement Team) colleagues, executed the search warrant on Sarich's residence and located nearly one thousand growing marijuana plants, and allegedly contacted the United States Drug Enforcement Administration ("DEA") to assist in the investigation. Public disclosure documents reveal that the "DEA" was actually another Washington State multi-jurisdictional drug task force called TNET (Tahoma Narcotics Enforcement Team).(CP 492) WEST NET detectives interviewed occupants of the house including a Zach Joy who was asked if he knew John Worthington. Mr. Joy said he did not know John Worthington but he knew someone named "Big John" as a partner of Mr. Sarich. (CP552-560)

Detective Alloway then applied for a telephonic search warrant for Worthington's residence, without honestly informing Judge Spearman that TNET had already decided to conduct a simultaneous knock and talk at Worthington's residence at a safety meeting prior to the raid on Sarich. (CP492) Using this fraud and deception Alloway was able obtain a search warrant, for "a guy named John", which enabled TNET to seize six marijuana plants from the premises, before the copy of the warrant for a "guy named John" arrived with Roy Alloway. (CP 320-325, 502)

After the initial warrantless raid, by the state law enforcement participating agencies of TNET, wearing DEA hats and windbreakers, Alloway arrived and

stated he was leaving the plants because Worthington was a legal medical marijuana patient under RCW 69.51A. (CP 501) Fred Bjornberg (Washington State Patrol) stepped forward and stated that he was a DEA agent and that the DEA was taking the plants. (CP 490)

In June of 2008, Worthington filed a public disclosure request with the Washington State Patrol, and was told the investigation was done by the DEA, and was informed that the DEA had all the documents of the raid. In this public records case, the WSP provided documents alleging that WSP members assigned to TNET, were a federal entity under the command and control of the DEA. After more public disclosure investigation, Worthington discovered the federal government and state drug control agencies met in 1996 to discuss the medical marijuana initiatives. During this meeting it was determined that the DOJ would federally cross designate state, county and city law enforcement officers, in order to utilize state resources to seize medical marijuana for the DEA. These meetings in 1996 led to a federal policy to use HIDTA grants to leverage state resources to seize medical marijuana for the DEA. (CP 628-640) This federal policy was signed by the president and entered into the federal registry on February 11, 1997. (CP 641-643)

In 1998, the Tahoma Narcotics Enforcement Team (TNET) Multijurisdictional drug task force was created. In that same year, the HIDTA grant to cross designate state and local law enforcement to seize medical marijuana for the DEA, was offered to the TNET participating members by the U.S. Department of Justice. (CP 589-591) The TNET participating members signed and agreed to the terms of statement of assurances for the HIDTA grants, (CP 587-588) and also signed agreements to concede state authority to the DEA.(CP 578-586) TNET, admitted to enforcing the federal HIDTA grant policy to use state and local law enforcement to seize medical marijuana for the DEA, on Worthington in their February 14, 2007 TNET Executive Board meeting, (CP 626) which is confirmed by the January 19, 2007 WEST NET policy board meeting. (CP 568- 569)

In December 2009, Worthington filed a lawsuit in King County Superior Court challenging a what was effectively a state funded federal preemption of the Washington State medical marijuana law and the seizing of his medical marijuana plants by Fred Bjornberg, a federally cross designated member of TNET. The 2009 case was dismissed ,after the federal Judge in the case ruled Worthington did not meet the constitutional requirements for the federal court to take jurisdiction of the case. (CP 516)

In August, October, and November of 2011, Worthington received public disclosure documents from the City of Bonney Lake showing that the DEA did not conduct the raid and confiscate his property as he was told. (CP 494-495)

Worthington was also sent documents from WEST NET showing the Naval

Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), the City of Auburn, and the Washington State Department of Corrections also participated in the raid. (CP 39)

In January of 2012, Worthington filed a new complaint with the King County Superior court alleging new facts, against new parties and was based on allegations of fraud. Worthington alleged that WEST NET and Roy Alloway actually seized his property instead of Fred Bjornberg of the DEA/TNET. The defendants have admitted Roy Alloway seized the medical marijuana instead of Fred Bjornberg, and have not disputed Worthington's allegations of fraud. (CP 489)

Worthington and the defendants filed motions for summary judgment and had a hearing on April 13, 2012. On June 22, 2012, the trial court granted the defendants motion for summary judgment for collateral estoppel, res judicata, and statute of limitations.

Worthington brings this timely appeal challenging the trail court's orders in the defendants' motion for summary judgment, Worthington's motion for summary judgment and Worthington's motion to reconsider.

C. ARGUMENT

1. If a case is decided on jurisdictional defects, is that decision "on the merits" for res judicata or collateral estoppel purposes?

"Whether the trial court appropriately granted summary judgment is a question of law that the Appellate courts will review de novo." Troxell v. Rainier

Pub. Sch. Dist. No. 307, 154 Wn.2d 345, 350, 111 P.3d 1173 (2005). The Appellate courts consider the same evidence that the trial court considered on summary judgment. (See Lybbert v. Grant County, 141 Wn.2d 29, 34, 1 P.3d 1124 (2000). "We read the facts and all reasonable inferences from those facts in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party". *Id*.

On page 7 of the federal judge's order, the Judge clearly examined the U.S. District Court's jurisdiction of the previous federal case in question and described jurisdictional deficiencies that prevented Worthington's claims from meeting the Article III constitutional requirement. (CP 516) After clearly refusing to accept federal jurisdiction of Worthington's "claims on behalf of others", the federal judge would then only have had hypothetical jurisdiction, in violation of the hypothetical jurisdiction doctrine. "The federal Hypothetical jurisdiction produces nothing more than a hypothetical judgment—which comes to the same thing as an advisory opinion, disapproved by this Court from the beginning". (See Steel Co. v. Citizens for a better Environment 523 U.S. 83 (1998), quoting Muskrat v. United States, 219 U.S. 346, 362 (1911); Hayburn's Case, 2 Dall. U.S. 409 (1792). "Much more than legal niceties are at stake here. "The statutory and (especially) constitutional elements of jurisdiction are an essential ingredient of separation and equilibration of powers, restraining the courts from acting at certain times, and even restraining them from acting permanently regarding certain subjects". (See

<u>United States v Richardson</u>,418 U.S. 166, 179 (1974); <u>Schlesinger v. Reservists</u>

<u>Comm. to Stop the War</u>,418 U.S. 208, 227 (1974). "For a court to pronounce upon the meaning or the constitutionality of a state or federal law when it has no jurisdiction, to do so is, by very definition, for a court to act ultra vires".

"assuming' jurisdiction for the purpose of deciding the merits —the `doctrine of hypothetical jurisdiction." <u>Steel Co.</u>, 523 U.S. at 94 (citing <u>United States v.</u>

<u>Troescher</u>, 99 F.3d 933, 934 n.1 (9th Cir. 1996)). "The Supreme Court "declined to endorse such an approach because it carries the courts beyond the bounds of authorized judicial action and thus offends fundamental principles of separation of powers." *Id.*; *see also id.* at 95.

On page 7 of the federal judge's order, the federal judge clearly ruled Worthington's complaint did not meet the Article III Constitutional requirements and refused jurisdiction of the case. Since the federal court ruled that Worthington's claims did not meet the constitutional jurisdictional requirements, and took hypothetical jurisdiction of the case to render an advisory ultra vires ruling there could not be a final ruling on the merits. "The application of either doctrine is dependent upon there being a final determination regarding the claim or issue". (See State v. Vasquez. 148 Wn.2d 303. 308. 59 P.3d 648 (2002) (collateral estoppel requires final judgment).

Assuming arguendo that the federal court had taken full jurisdiction of

Worthington's previous claims, which they did not, the court ruled Worthington himself made no claims and only made claims on behalf of others. (CP 234)

This can only mean, "The merits" of Worthington's individual claims were never acknowledged, and that there was never a final determination on Worthington's individual remaining 2009 state law claims.

The controlling Washington State case law arguments for defenses of res judicata and collateral estoppel, when previous cases are dismissed for lack of standing due to procedural defects, are found in a published opinion by the Washington State Court of Appeals of Division III, Ullery v. Fulleton 162 Wn. App. 596 256 P.3d 406 (2011). "In some courts—those, such as the federal courts, whose authority is limited to deciding cases and controversies—a plaintiff's lack of standing deprives a court of subject matter jurisdiction, making it impossible to enter a judgment on the merits". Fleck & Assocs., Inc. v. City of Phoenix, 471 F.3d 1100, 1102 (9th Cir. 2006) (recognizing that when a plaintiff lacks standing, the district court lacked subject matter jurisdiction to address the merits of the claim and should have dismissed it without prejudice on that ground alone); cf. Steel Co. v. Citizens for a Better Env't, 523 U.S. 83, 94, 118 S. Ct. 1003, 140 L.Ed.2d 210 (1998) ("Without jurisdiction the court cannot proceed at all in any cause. Jurisdiction is power to declare the law, and when it ceases to exist, the only function remaining to the court is that of announcing the fact and dismissing the

cause," (quoting Ex parte McCardle, 74 U.S. (7 Wall.) 506, 514, 19 L.Ed. 264 (1868)). "Regardless of the trial court's construction of its 2005 order and judgment of dismissal, prudential considerations of justiciability prevent a judgment of dismissal based on lack of standing from constituting a judgment on the merits". The Restatement (Second) of Judgments § 20(1) (a) (1982) provides that "a personal judgment for the defendant, although valid and final, does not bar another action by the plaintiff on the same claim ... [w]hen the judgment is one of dismissal for lack of jurisdiction, for improper venue, or for nonjoinder or misjoinder of parties."" Courts considering the issue have treated a lack of standing as the same sort of threshold justiciability issue, preventing the judgment as operating as a bar". (See, e.g., Cayer Enters., Inc. v. DiMasi, 84 Conn. App. 190, 852 A.2d 758, 760-61 (2004) (holding that judgments based on want of jurisdiction, want of maturity, failure to prosecute, unavailable or inappropriate relief or remedy, or lack of standing are not rendered on the merits; collecting cases); Batterman v. Wells Fargo Ag Credit Corp., 802 P.2d 1112, 1118 (Colo.App.1990) (collecting cases); cf. Skagit Surveyors and Engineers, LLC v. Friends of Skagit County, 135 Wash.2d 542, 958 P.2d 962 (1998) (Talmadge, J., dissenting) (treating standing issue as tantamount to jurisdictional issue); Nat'l Elec. Contractors Ass'n v. Riveland, 138 Wn.2d 9, 42, 978 P.2d 481 (1999) (Talmadge, J., dissenting) (discussing principles of justiciability as including

whether the litigants have real interests in the outcome).

The cases the defendants initially cited in both their reply to Worthington's preliminary injunction and their motion for summary judgment were:

(<u>Kuhlman v. Thomas</u> 78 Wn. App. 115, 120, 897 P.2d 365 (1995), <u>Shoemaker v. City of Bremerton</u> 109 Wash.2d 504, 745 P.2d 858 (1987), <u>Landry v. Luscher</u> 95 Wn .App. 779, 783, 976 P.2d 1274 (1999). <u>Kelly-Hansen v. Kelly-Hansen</u> 87 Wn. App. 320, 328-29, 941 P.2d 1108 (1997), <u>Golden v. McGill</u> 3 Wash.2d 708, 720, 102 P.2d 219 (1940), <u>Bordeax v. Ingersoll Rand Co.</u> 71 Wn.2d 392 (1967) 429 P.2d 207, <u>Malland v. State Department of Revenue Systems</u> 103 Wn.2d 484,489,694 P.2d 16 (1985).(CP 59-61)

These cases dealt mostly with claims which did not have jurisdictional or standing defects, and did not contain the necessary controlling legal principles for cases dismissed for lack of standing for those jurisdictional defects. The defendants decided to change that legal argument altogether in their 5 page reply brief and presented it orally at the Summary Judgment hearing. (RP 5-12). The centerpiece of the argument was the case law in <u>Hisle v. Todd Pacific Shipyard</u>, 151 Wn.2d 853, 93 P.3d 108 (2004) shown below:

"The *Hisle* Court makes it clear that dismissal of a lawsuit with prejudice is a final judgment on the merits: Although the Court of Appeals did not expressly address whether the *Adams* dismissal was a final adjudication on the merits, *Hisle*, 113 Wash.App. [401,] 410–14, 54 P.3d 687 [2002], this threshold res judicata requirement is satisfied

because *Adams* was dismissed with prejudice. *Maib v. Md. Cas. Co.*, 17 Wash.2d 47, 52, 135 P.2d 71 (1943) (a dismissal with prejudice constitutes a final judgment on the merits)."

As shown below in their En Banc ruling, the Washington State Supreme Court affirms that the *Hisle* case was in the summary judgment phase and not the 12 (b) (1) phase, where a court was able to determine the merits without taking hypothetical jurisdiction of the case to do so.

"Both parties moved for <u>summary judgment</u>. The trial court rejected Hisle's motions for class certification and summary judgment and granted Todd's motion for summary judgment. It also dismissed Hisle's lawsuit with prejudice, <u>finding that it was preempted by section 301 of the LMRA</u>, and barred by res judicata and the Adams <u>settlement agreement."</u>

Similarly, the defendants rely on federal case <u>Nordyke v. King</u>, 644 F.3d 776, 788 -789 (9th Cir. 2011) to explain standing issues. Again as was the case in *Hisle* the federal court ruled on a summary judgment as shown below:

[644 F.3d 782]

"The district court allowed the addition of all claims except for the Second Amendment claim, which the district court deemed futile because *Nordyke III* had already held that a Second Amendment claim was precluded by binding circuit precedent. After two motions to dismiss, only the First Amendment and equal protection claims survived. The district court then granted summary judgment to the County on those remaining claims. The Nordykes timely appealed."

As shown above the cited case which the defendant's relied upon was able to get past the 12 (b) (1) phase and did not present a situation where a court denied jurisdiction and took hypothetical jurisdiction to rule on the merits.

Another case the defendants relied upon was a federal U.S. Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals ruling in <u>Lake Washington School District No. 414 v. Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction</u>, 634 F.3d 1065, 1066 (9th Cir. 2011), which was dealing with statutory standing as shown below:

"We must also consider "whether a particular plaintiff has been granted a right to sue by the statute under which he or she brings suit." *Id.* In this case, we must determine whether the IDEA confers upon a school district the right to sue a state agency for its alleged noncompliance with IDEA procedures."

"the school district lacks statutory standing to challenge the State of Washington's compliance with the IDEA's procedural protections. The district court correctly dismissed its complaint with prejudice."

Judge Robart did not rule that Worthington did not have statutory standing, he ruled Worthington made no claims for himself and only made them on behalf of others. (Without naming the persons Worthington allegedly made claims for) (CP 234) Nor did Judge Robart rule that Worthington could never, allege a cognizable injury. Judge Robart only indicated that he could not "Discern" Worthington's claims or interfere in what was a legislative matter. In fact Judge Robart avoided statutory interpretation altogether.

Judge Robart never offered the specific scrutiny of Worthington's claims as

Appeals, Ninth Circuit, 136 F.Supp.2d 1048 (2001), Perhaps due to the fact that Worthington's complaint was littered with damages claims for himself, and specific injury claims for interfering with Worthington's medical treatment causing emergency room visits and outpatient care, and contained no request for damages for other parties. (CP 363,364,380,385,387) (These claims are now moot since they were based on a fraud and may have been barred for ripeness)

Worthington overcame the defendant's case law in the hearing for summary judgment with the hypothetical jurisdiction case law arguments, which relied on U.S. Supreme Court rulings and U.S. Ninth Circuit rulings, which essentially removed any possibility of a final determination on the merits (RP 12-19) Worthington also briefed the hypothetical jurisdiction arguments in his motion to reconsider. (CP 506-511)

The defendants' old and new legal theory did not provide the applicable controlling case law principles for Worthington's first federal claims, because those remaining 2009 state law claims were denied for jurisdictional deficiencies and never made it to a final determination on the merits. In addition, the plausibility issue in the previous federal case would have been Worthington's claims and issues on behalf of others and not Worthington's individual claims and issues, since the federal judge claimed Worthington himself made no claim for damages. (CP479) Worthington could have cured those plausibility claims by simply making claims and issues for himself. (Worthington argued he made state

law claims to no avail) The "deficiencies" that could not have been cured were the federal jurisdictional issues because there was no federal actor, and then Worthington dropped all of the federal causes of action and only left state law claims in the complaint. (CP 473) The defendants ultimately failed to meet the final adjudication on the merits test, because the federal judge was unable to "discern" Worthington's individual claims and issues, and did not take jurisdiction of the claims to be able to adjudicate them on the merits. (CP 473) Any other ruling made by Judge Robart, other than to dismiss without prejudice was under hypothetical jurisdiction and ultra vires according to U.S. Supreme Court case law. The defendant's did not offer any U.S. Supreme court case law showing the practice of taking hypothetical jurisdiction of cases for the purposes of making a ruling on the merits was accepted by the high court.

As shown above the federal court judge did not take federal jurisdiction of the previous federal case in 2009 nor could he "discern" Worthington's claims to be able to rule on the merits of them. The previous federal court ruling dismissing Worthington's case for lack of Article III Constitutional standing, did not have preclusive effect on his claim under either the doctrines of res judicata or collateral estoppel.

With Worthington having shown there was no final ruling on the merits in the previous federal case, the Appellate court need not consider the other elements

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