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

IV. ARGUMENT 

A. Standard of Review. 

Summary judgment is proper when "the pleadings, depositions, 

answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the 

affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material 

fact that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law." CR 

56( c). In a summary judgment proceeding, the moving party bears the 

initial burden of showing the absence of an issue of material fact. Young 

v. Key Pharmaceuticals, 112 Wn.2d 216,225,770 P.2d 182 (1989). 

Once the movant's initial burden has been met, the burden shifts to 

the non-moving party to set forth specific facts showing that there is a 

genuine issue for trial. Rathvon v. Columbia Pac. Airlines, 30 Wn. App. 

193,201,633 P.2d 122 (1981). The non-moving party "may not rely on 

the allegations in the pleadings but must set forth specific facts by 

affidavit or otherwise that show a genuine issue exists." Las v. Yellow 

Front Stores, 66 Wn. App. 196, 198, 831 P.2d 744 (1992). The Court of 

Appeals reviews summary judgment de novo. Braaten v. Saberhagen 

Holdings, 165 Wn.2d 373, 383, 198 P.3d 493 (2008). 

fifteen days following the seIzure on the owner of the property 
seized .... "). 
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Here, the trial court properly detennined that Mr. Worthington's 

claims should be dismissed on the basis of res judicata, collateral 

estoppel, and the statute of limitations. The Court should affinn this 

order. 

B. Mr. Worthington's Claim Are Barred By Res Judicata. 

Under the doctrine of res judicata, or claim preclusion, a plaintiff 

is barred from litigating claims that either were, or should have been, 

litigated in a fonner action. Kuhlman v. Thomas, 78 Wn. App. 115, 120, 

897 P.2d 365 (1995) (emphasis added). The purpose of the doctrine is to 

ensure the finality of judgments and eliminate duplicitous litigation. 

Landry v. Luscher, 95 Wn. App. 779, 783, 976 P.2d 1274 (1999). 

[R]es judicata 'applies, except in special cases, not only to 
points upon which the court was actually required by the 
parties to fonn an opinion and pronounce a judgment, but 
to every point which properly belonged to the subject of the 
litigation and which the parties, exercising reasonable 
diligence, might have brought forward at that time.' 

Kelly-Hansen v. Kelly-Hansen, 87 Wn. App. 320, 329, 941 P.2d 1108 

(1997) ; citing Golden v. McGill, 3 Wn.2d 708, 720, 102 P .2d 219 (1940). 

Application of res judicata requires a final judgment on the merits in the 

prior suit. Hisle v. Todd Pac. Shipyards, 151 Wn.2d 853, 865, 93 P.3d 

108 (2002). 
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1. Judge Robart's Order Was A Final Judgment. 

Mr. Worthington argues that res judicata should not apply, 

because Judge Robart did not have jurisdiction to enter a final judgment 

on the merits. Judge Robart explicitly dismissed Mr. Worthington's case 

"without leave to amend." A dismissal without leave to amend the 

complaint is the same as a dismissal with prejudice. Nordyke v. King, 644 

F.3d 776, 788-89 (9th Cir. 2011) ("a denial of leave to amend for futility 

should be with prejudice whenever a dismissal of the proposed complaint 

would have been with prejudice, that is, if the proposed complaint could 

not be saved by amendment"). 

Additionally, federal cases are routinely dismissed with prejudice 

on the basis of standing. Lake Washington School District No. 414 v. 

Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction, 634 F .3d 1065, 1066 (9th 

Cir. 2011); Schmier v. Us. Court of Appeals for Ninth Circuit, 279 F.3d 

817, 824 (9th Cir. 2002) ("the district court also properly dismissed 

Schmier's complaint with prejudice, meaning it also correctly denied 

Schmier leave to amend his complaint"); Cato v. United States, 70 F.2d 

1103, 1111 (9th Cir. 1995). 

Moreover, Washington courts recogmze that a dismissal with 

prejudice is a final adjudication on the merits. "Although the Court of 

Appeals did not expressly address whether the Adams dismissal was a 
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final adjudication on the merits, ... this threshold res judicata requirement 

is satisfied because Adams was dismissed with prejudiced." Hisle, 151 

Wn.2d at 866, n.IO; see also Maib v. Md Cas. Co., 17 Wn.2d 47,52, 135 

P.2d 71 (1943) (a dismissal with prejudice constitutes a final judgment on 

the merits). 

Mr. Worthington also relies on a Court of Appeals case, Ullery v. 

Fullerton, 162 Wn. App. 596, 256 P.3d 406 (2011), for the proposition 

that a dismissal in federal court based on standing is not a judgment on the 

merits. Mr. Worthington overstates the holding in Ullery. In Ullery, the 

federal district court dismissed the plaintiff s case on a "curable standing 

defect." Id. at 5983• To the contrary, in Mr. Worthington's case, Judge 

Robart made it clear that Mr. Worthington's standing defect was not 

curable when he refused permission to amend the Fifth Amended 

Complaint. 

While Judge Robart did not use the words "with prejudice," 

without question his order and judgment dismissing Mr. Worthington's 

case and refusing to allow any further amendments to his complaint 

clearly were intended to be a dismissal with prejudice, which is a final 

3 To the extent Mr. Worthington argues that Ullery holds that a dismissal 
with prejudice is not a judgment on the merits, it is at odds with Hisle. 
Since Hisle is a Supreme Court holding, this Court is bound to follow 
Hisle. 
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judgment on the merits for the purposes of res judicata. Any challenges to 

Judge Robart's decision or dismissal with prejudice would properly have 

been litigated in Mr. Worthington's appeal of that order. The Ninth 

Circuit's summary affirmation of Judge Robart's judgment is a final 

judgment precluding Mr. Worthington from re-litigating this issue. 

2. Res Judicata Applies In This Case. 

Dismissal on the basis of res judicata is appropriate if the moving 

party can prove "a concurrence of identity between the two actions in four 

respects: (1) persons and parties; (2) cause of action; (3) subject matter; 

and (4) the quality of the persons for or against whom the claim is made." 

Kulhman, 78 Wn. App. at 120; Schoeman v. New York Life, 106 Wn.2d 

855, 726 P.2d 1 (1986). 

While there is no specific test for determining identity of causes of 

action, the following criteria should be considered: 

(1) whether rights or interests established in the prior 
judgment would be destroyed or impaired by prosecution of 
the second action; (2) whether substantially the same 
evidence is presented in the two actions; (3) whether the 
two suits involve infringement of the same right; and (4) 
whether the two suits arise out of the same transactional 
nucleus of facts. 

Kuhlman, 78 Wn. App. at 122, citing Rains v. State, 100 Wn.2d 660, 664, 

674 P.2d 165 (1983). 

Additionally, if the relationship between plaintiff and defendants 
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was adversarial in both proceedings, then the quality of the person for or 

against whom the claim is made in each case is identical. Landry, 95 Wn. 

App. at 785; Bordeaux v. Ingersoll Rand Co., 71 Wn.2d 392, 397-98, 429 

P.2d 207 (1967). 

For the same reason that res judicata barred Mr. Worthington's 

motion for a preliminary injunction, the doctrine of res judicata bars all of 

Mr. Worthington's claims asserted in his Amended Complaint against 

Bremerton, Poulsbo, Port Orchard, Auburn, and the State of Washington. 

There is a concurrence of the identity between Mr. Worthington's original 

federal court action and this present action, because (1) Mr. Worthington 

and these defendants were all party (or privy) to the federal action; (2) Mr. 

Worthington's current cause of action is nearly identical to his cause of 

action in federal court; (3) the subject matter of the two lawsuits are the 

same; and (4) Mr. Worthington's relationship with the defendants in both 

actions is adversarial. 

The "new parties" are III privity with the former parties for 

purposes of collateral estoppel. The trial court found that Auburn is in 

privity with the other Defendants in this lawsuit. Transcript of February 

14,2012 Hearing, p. 26:14-16. 

Mr. Worthington asserts in his brief: 
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The City of Auburn and the Washington State Department 
of Corrections were added to the new claims, because at the 
time of the previous federal claims, Worthington only knew 
of those state actors as federal actors wearing DEA wind 
breakers and hats, handing out DEA business cards. 

App. Brief at 20. 

In his 2009 federal court action, Mr. Worthington named seven 

cities and their police chiefs who were members in TNET or WestNET 

(along with seven State employees individually, three state agencies). CP 

87-88. The City of Auburn was a member of TNET. Mr. Worthington had 

inundated TNET with Public Record Act requests and received hundreds 

of documents. He clearly knew - or should have known - that Auburn 

was a member. It was no secret. 

Mr. Worthington submits that he should be allowed to sue entities 

who were members of the same task force, but who he chose not to sue the 

first time. This would create a dangerous situation for multi-member task 

forces, inter local city/county operations, and even private joint ventures 

or LLCs. Under Mr. Worthington's theory, a plaintiff could chose to sue 

less than all members of a group, lose, and then continue to bring suit 

against the members he held back on. This could result in a multiplicity of 

litigation and frustrate the purposes of the res judicata doctrine. 

Furthermore, both these lawsuits involve the same nucleus of facts, 

and Mr. Worthington relies upon the same evidence and argument. Both 
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lawsuits are based upon the search and seizure at Mr. Worthington's home 

on January 12, 2007. When Mr. Worthington filed his complaint in 

federal court (and when he filed four separate amended complaints), Mr. 

Worthington had the opportunity to assert any federal or state law causes 

of action against these defendants related to that search and/or seizure. It 

was his obligation to state a claim upon which relief could be granted, and 

the federal court gave him ample opportunity to do so. Mr. Worthington 

had six bites at the apple in federal court. 

This new state law cause of action pleads nearly identical claims, 

requests identical relief, and is based on identical conduct. It is immaterial 

which defendant actually seized Mr. Worthington's marijuana plants. His 

claims against the defendants are the same. The purpose of res judicata is 

to prevent this type of duplicative litigation, unfairly exposing defendants 

to substantial additional costs, while denying them any final resolution. 

The doctrine of res judicata undisputedly bars Mr. Worthington from 

pursuing his current lawsuit, and the Court should therefore affirm the trial 

court's order dismissing Mr. Worthington's claims on the basis of res 

judicata. 

C. Mr. Worthington's Claims Are Barred By Collateral Estoppel. 

Under the doctrine of collateral estoppel, or issue preclusion, a 

plaintiff is barred from re-litigating an issue that was previously decided. 
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Shoemaker v. City of Bremerton, 107 Wn.2d 504, 507, 745 P.2d 858 

(1987). The issue whether Mr. Worthington has standing to request this 

type of injunctive relief is barred by the doctrine of collateral estoppel. 

The requirements for application of collateral estoppel are: 

(1) identical issues; (2) a final judgment on the merits; (3) 
the party against whom the plea is asserted must have been 
a party to or in privity with a party to the prior adjudication; 
and (4) application of the doctrine must not work an 
injustice on the party against whom the doctrine is to be 
applied. 

Malland v. State Dept. of Retirement Systems, 103 Wn.2d 484, 489, 694 

P .2d 16 (1985). 

The issue whether Mr. Worthington has standing to request 

injunctive relief that would effectively disband WestNET, TNET, or any 

other multi-jurisdictional drug task force agreement between state and 

federal agencies has already been decided in federal court. The legal basis 

for standing in federal court and state court is practically and substantially 

identical (both of which are briefed in Defendants' Joint Response to 

Plaintiffs Motion for Preliminary Injunction, CP 75-77); Judge Robart 

issued a final ruling on the merits with respect to standing; all present 

defendants were either defendants or in privity with defendants in the 

previous lawsuit; and application of collateral estoppel does not work any 

injustice against Mr. Worthington. 
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Additionally, the trial court already ruled that Mr. Worthington's 

request for a preliminary injunction was barred by res judicata and 

collateral estoppel, a decision which Mr. Worthington did not appeal. The 

Court should affirm the trial court's order dismissing Mr. Worthington's 

request for injunctive relief, because that claim is barred by the doctrine of 

collateral estoppel. 

D. Mr. Worthington's Claims Are Barred By the Statute of 
Limitations. 

Even if this Court does not determine that Mr. Worthington's 

claims are barred by the doctrines of res judicata and collateral estoppel, 

they are still barred by the applicable statute of limitations. This is a 

straightforward issue. "[A] cause of action accrues when a claimant 

knows, or in the exercise of due diligence should have known, all the 

essential elements of the cause of action ... " Matter of Estates of Hibbard, 

118 Wn.2d 737, 752, 826 P.2d 690,698 (1992). Mr. Worthington was 

present on January 12,2007, when a number of law enforcement officers, 

including Detective Alloway and Agent Bjornberg, searched his horne and 

seized his property. Agent Bjornberg also handed Mr. Worthington an 

identification card. The statute of limitations in Washington applicable to 

Mr. Worthington's claims, which all arise from this January 12, 2007 

search and seizure, is three years. RCW 4.16.080. Mr. Worthington 
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waited more than five years to bring this lawsuit, and it is now time 

barred. 

i. The "Discovery Rule" Does Not Apply. 

Knowing that the statute of limitations has already run, Mr. 

Worthington attempts to apply the discovery rule to improperly extend it. 

The Court should reject this argument as contrary to the law and the facts 

of this case. 

The common law discovery rule exception has "limited 

application," and applies only to those cases in which plaintiffs do not 

immediately know of their injuries or in which plaintiffs could not 

immediately know the cause of their injuries. Matter of Estates of 

Hibbard, 118 Wn.2d 737, 749-50, 826 P.2d 690 (1992); Metropolitan 

Services, inc. v. Spokane, 32 Wn. App. 714, 770, 649 P.2d 642, review 

denied, 98 Wn.2d 1008 (1982). The undisputed facts show that Mr. 

Worthington had personal knowledge of the material facts relevant to this 

lawsuit on January 12,2007. In fact, he named Bjomberg and Alloway in 

his first lawsuit filed in 2009. Even if Mr. Worthington did not know the 

identity of all of the individuals involved in the search and seizure, or the 

identity of the individual who actually took his marijuana plants, Mr. 

Worthington had every opportunity to file a complaint and conduct civil 

discovery to learn any additional information and amend his complaint if 
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necessary. 

The irony of Mr. Worthington's wild assertions is that the "new 

evidence" that he claims defendants withheld is not even consistent with 

this personal observations. Mr. Worthington's 2009 lawsuit described 

what he saw: 

A man identifying himself as a DEA agent, presented an 
identification card with no photo, and confiscated the 6 
plants.. .. Worthington, suspicious of the intent of the raid, 
pursued the issue thru public disclosure requests investigating 
the raid, and finds out that the DEA agent was WSP officer 
Fred Bjornberg, cross designated as a DEA officer assigned 
to the lAD division of the WSP to supervise TNET .... Thru 
the Washington State Public Records Act and the internet, 
Worthington obtains numerous documents in his two and a 
half year investigation to support the allegations brought 
against all the Defendants in this action. 

CP 90-91, Amended Complaint at ~3.7. 

Mr. Worthington's response to a clearly time-barred claim is that 

he learned minor bits of information after he filed his 2010 lawsuit. 

However, he had all the information he needed to commence the running 

of the statute of limitations on the day of the incident. Anything else he 

learned during discovery or investigation would merely be refined 

information that all civil litigants collect after commencing suit. 

The discovery rule does not apply. 
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2. With Due Diligence, Mr. Worthington Could Have 
Discovered the Basis of His Claim. 

Even if the Court believes that the discovery rule should apply 

here, Mr. Worthington's failure to exercise due diligence to discover the 

factual basis for his claims precludes his reliance on the discovery rule. 

Where a plaintiff has notice that some harm has been caused by another's 

conduct, the law imposes a duty of due diligence to discover the factual 

basis for any potential claims:

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